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WEST SUFFOLK COLLEGE
REPORT OF THE GOVERNING BODY

NATURE, OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIES:

The memberspresent their report and the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 July 2021.

Legal Status

The Corporation was established under the Further and Higher Education Act 1992
for the purpose of conducting West Suffolk College. The College is an exempt charity
for the purposesof Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011.

Mission, Aim & Vision

Our mission
To use education as a catalyst of positive social change and prosperity for the
community we serve, leaving no-one behind.

Our aim
To put students and their successat the heart of everything we do, preparing them for
the future.
Our vision
To inspire outstanding education to enable all students to gain the right qualifications,

the best grades, the connections with businesses and the character strengths they
need to succeed andrealise their future.

RESOURCES

The absenceofany rate funding increases for FE Colleges in the seven years leading
up to 2020/21 had intensified pressure on resourcesfor the FE and Skills Sector and
the College. The increases provided by the ESFA with effect from August 2020 were
therefore very welcomeevenif the increases did not reset relative funding levels to
those of 2013. The advent of some capital funding through the FE Capital

Allocation (FECA) funds that the majority of colleges received nationally were very
welcomebut not enoughto addressall aspects of the estate condition. Although more
capital funding opportunities have presented themselves since the FECAfunding, the
absenceof easily accessible and unmatched capital funding will present a challenge
for the Collegeif it wishes to continue to invest in its key assets; its staff andits
buildings and infrastructure.

Despite these pressures, the College has striven to continue investingin its estate as
muchasit can in order to have a safe, attractive, and welcoming environmentatits
campusesandconsidersthat it has done an excellent job in that respect.

The 2020/21 year continued to see financial pressure from the measures taken
to contend with the challenges of the pandemic. A numberof income streams were
affected with apprenticeships, AEB andfull cost commercial provision income streams
particularly affected. In the case of apprenticeships, the slower uptake led to a lower
income stream in the early part of 2021/22 which has applied somepressure in that



yearand in the case of AEB,the outturn was lower than the ESFAtolerance threshold
of 90% which led to a clawback of £113,000. Whilst the relaxation of the clawback
tolerance threshold was very welcome, it was not nearly enough for what was a more
disrupted year than 2019/20 when the threshold was much lower. Fortunately,
commercial incomerallied towards the year end and closed somelost ground during
the middle of the year.

The costs of COVID-19 management with increased cleaning and staffing costs,
inadequate COVID-19 grant funding for measures such as LFT centres also applied
financial pressure that impacted the final out-turn.

Despite the challengesset out above, the College was successful
in outperforming its budgeted surplus of £200,000 with a surplus of £559,000 before
any non-cash pension adjustment. This ensured that the College maintained its
Outstanding financial health status.

The College has employed an average of 546 FTE (Full Time Equivalent) staff during
the year which is an increase of 17 from 529 in the previous year. Of the staffing,
some 628 are permanentstaff and there are 120 hourly paid teaching staff and casual
staff employed by the College. There is a healthy balance between long serving and
well qualified staff and newer and less experienced staff which complement each
other well. Despite the College operating in a lockdown environment for much of the
year, staff recruitment continued but the experience of the previous year with
recruitment of high-quality staff presenting a real challenge within the budgetary
constraints that the College faces, the College’s reputation as a dynamic and
successful organisation both nationally and locally still provided a helping hand
to recruitment. As is the case nationally and not just within FE, staff turnoverwill no
doubt present an area to keep under review during the 2021/22 year.

The reputation of the College is very strong, both locally and nationally. This is a result
of high qualification outcomes, but also the excellent enrichment, outreach, and
collaborative working that takes place. The successesduring this yeararelisted below
and demonstrate the College’s ability, even during the most challenging of times, to
put its students and the community at the heart of what we do.

e Weare the lead organisation within a consortium of outstanding education
institutions, as one of the Department for Education’s Ed-Tech Demonstrators.
Theinitiative is designed to support teaching and learning practice across the
country by embracing and embedding the use of technology.

e Wecontinue to be thefirst provider to have an Apprenticeship accredited by

The Royal Society of Chemistry. Accreditation enables students and employers
to choose high quality vocational programmes and provides assurance that
these programmes provide the knowledge and competencies required in a
competitive marketplace. The accreditation is in place for five years and further
such accreditations are being sought.

e Our skills escalator model which brings a range of support and opportunities
together for educators, parents, and young people, plansto hold a ‘STEMtastic
Live’ in Spring 2022. This eventis a virtual celebration of Science, Technology,
Engineering, and Innovation. We hope to engage again the employers below



and extend further - BT, STEM Learning, Anglian Water, Rolls Royce, Treatt,

EDF Energy, Cambridge University and Tech She Can.

e We have held over 30 different virtual events since the pandemichit this year,

hitting wider audiences, andflying the flag for digital innovation. Examples of
this include VeXeD (online art show), STEMtastic (Virtual STEM Fair) and

LockdownLive (Music concert celebrating the work of our students).
e We continue to support an exceptional online resource to support year 11

students with their future progression steps. A toolkit was made available to
support these students in making informed decisions abouttheir future at a time

when many would have felt anxious about their next steps.
e West Suffolk College was announcedas oneofthefirst colleges to be part of

the WorldSkills UK Centre of Excellence, in partnership with NCFE,to

mainstream world-class standardsin skills development in the UK. We are the
only college in the Eastern region to have this fantastic accolade.

e End point assessments for 300 apprentices have been completed remotely
since lockdown with a 94% first time pass rate.

e Our University Studies provision received positive NSS (National Student
Survey) scoresfor overall satisfaction (5-15% above sector average) last year
in Psychology, Design subjects, Early Childhood studies and Humanities,
despite an overall drop in the satisfaction rate for the College as a whole.

As a College we are immensely proud of our achievements and consequential
outstanding reputation.

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIPS

Employer Stakeholders

Successful relationships continue with a multitude of key stakeholders including both
the New Anglia LEP (NALEP), Cambridge and Peterborough Combined Authority
(CPCA) and Greater London Authority (GLA). This is the final year of contracting with
GLA.

The College haslinks with many local employers and their representative groups,for
example the Chambers of Commerce, Institute of Directors, and the CBI

(Confederation of British Industry) etc. College staff regularly attend meetings and are
represented on the board of the West Suffolk Chambers of Commerce andare patrons
of the Suffolk Chamber of Commerce. During the year the College has continued to
host the Bury St Edmunds Chamberof Commerceoffices at the main College campus
in Bury St Edmunds,further strengthening the links between the College and its
students with that of employers.

Employer engagementat the Collegeis carried out by a dedicated team of staff whose
function is to engage with employers, help employers realise their growth aspirations
and deliver effective and innovative programmesof learning for their staff. This

approach has enabled the College to maximise all budget lines and increase
engagement with major employers in the region. The College has engaged with a
number of employers ranging from large businesses, such as Hutchison Ports (UK)
Limited, Cambridge University Press and Cranswick Foodsin the private sector, to



large public sector employers, for example West Suffolk NHS Foundation Trust,
Cambridge University NHS Foundation Trust, Suffolk County Council and the Norfolk
and Norwich University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust; to hundreds of small and
medium sized enterprises across the Region.

The College holds a range of employer events and advisory groups with local
businesses to elicit feedback from employers on the relevance of the College’s
provision as well as ensuring that employers’ current and future skills needs can be
included in the College’s offer. Employers have valued our information, advice, and
guidance andthis is being reflected in the numbers of apprentices being enrolled and
the feedback received. Close working relationships with the Department for Work and
Pensions (DWP)have enabled the College to run a numberof programmesfor adults
to retrain for employment and weare currently working on a range of new programmes
to help business restart and recoverfollowing COVID-19, including collaborative Youth
Hubsand sector specific training for real jobs being created.

Local Authority Stakeholders

The College works on joint projects with both tiers of local government economic
development teams. For example, contributing to the Business Festival organised by
West Suffolk Council by holding employer information events and a range of business
seminars and being a memberof the Skills Group with the LEP, West Suffolk Council,
DWP and employers for USAF (United States Air Force) Lakenheath. Babergh and
Mid Suffolk Council and Ipswich Borough Council have both funded Youth
Employment projects which are working extremely well to reduce the numbers of
young people not in education, employment, and training.

Local Community Stakeholders

The College offers a wide range of provision throughout the local area both at its own
centres and in premises hired specifically, particularly for adults in the local
community. Recent examples include English, maths and managementtraining aimed
at horse racing industry staff delivered in the National Association of Racing Staff
(NARS) Centre in Newmarket as well as English and maths for the East of England
Ambulance Service.

The College reviewsits offer on an ongoing basis to ensure it is both viable and

responds to market demands but also so that such provision is easily accessible
throughout local communities.

School Outreach and Enrichment — Escalator

The College is dedicated to supporting the pre-16 education landscape and maintains
excellent relationships with its feeder schools and local education providers. This
extensive work that has reached over 5000 under 16s and over 500 educators over
the last year has enabled the College to become the heart of education in the county
and the region.

The skills escalator offer is a combination of nationally funded projects such as the
Computing Hub (DfE and NCCE), EdTech demonstrator programme (DfE) and STEM



Clubs (STEM Learning UK). In addition, local and targeted initiatives such as the
Science Boxes whichbrings hands-on experiential learning to the classroom by way
of a box of resources, experiment guideslinked to the national curriculum and access
to an expert. This has been further supplemented with online teaching and support
throughout the pandemic. The new contracts secured and delivered this year have
enabled the increase in reach to education providers and individuals alike and
continue to strengthen our network of education partners including academy trusts
from across the region.

Suffolk Academies Trust

The College continues its successful relationship with the Suffolk Academies Trust
and remainsits sponsor. This relationship is now 6 years old and remainsa positive
platform for influencing the educational outcomesof a significant and growing share
of the county’s 16-19 year olds. The Trust has two 16-19 academies with
approximately 3,000 16-19 yearolds.

Public Benefit

West Suffolk College is an exempt charity under the Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011
and is regulated by the Secretary of State for Education. The members of the
Corporation, who are Trustees of the charity, are disclosed on page 18.

In setting and reviewing the College’s strategic objectives, the Corporation has had
due regard for the Charity Commission’s guidance on public benefit and particularly
upon its supplementary guidance on the advancementof education.

In delivering its vision, the College provides the following identifiable public benefits

through the advancement of education:

e High-quality teaching

e Widening participation and tackling social exclusion

e Excellent employment record for students

e Strong student support systems

e Links with employers, industry, and commerce.

e Links with Local Enterprise Partnerships (LEPs)

Implementation of the Strategic Plan

In January 2019, the Corporation adopted the Eastern Colleges Group’s 3-
year Strategic Vision and plan, which covers the period 2019-21 and aligns with the
otherinstitutions in the Eastern Colleges Group andsetthe following strategic aims:

e Put post-16 students and their success at the heart of everything we do.

e Prepare studentsfor their future.
e Be recognised for achieving excellence in each of the curriculum areas andin

the wrap-around support for our students.



e Create an inclusive environment where every studentis on the right course, at
the right level and supported towards outstanding achievement, so that no-one
is left behind.

e Create a responsive curriculum that meets the needs of our region and
provides the energy that powers our local economy.

e Ensure that we are a learning organisation at all levels that is committed to
developing a highly trained and responsive workforce.

e Provide an estate that fulfils the needs ofa fully resourced curriculum.

e Develop diverse sources of income from the private and public sectors thatis
resilient to policy changes.

e Ensurefinancial stability and sustainability for all the institutions in the Group.

e Workin collaboration with other organisations, including employers, to support
the educational needs of our community and act as a catalystfor prosperity and
excellence within the region.

The College has made good progressin fulfilling these objectives and specific
examplesof achieving the objectives abovewill be coveredin this strategic report and
performance against them is regularly reported to the Corporation via the CEO’s
briefing.

Character Strengths
Our students will be able to show employers and universities that they have the
strength of character to shine out above the rest and live as independentthinkers,
confident in the choices and actions.

These strengths are: Resilience, Optimism, Curiosity, Confidence, Ownership, Self-
Control, Ambition and Respect.

Financial Objectives for Year to 31 July 2021

The College’s specific financial objectives for 2020/21 were set out in the Budget
and Financial Forecast 2020/21 which was approved by the Corporation in July 2020.
Progress against the objectives is monitored, as part of regular Key Performance
Indicators, by both the Senior Executive Team and the Finance Committee.

These objectives are set out below and accompanied by the outturn position for the
yearin respect of each objective:

1. The College generates a minimum break-evenposition in the three-year period.

For the three-year period ended 31 July 2021, the College generated a pre-
pension FRS102 surplus of £2,629,000.

2. The budgets plan for positive cash generation which will enable the College to
contribute to capital investmentin its estate



The financial performancein 2020/21 generated cash from operations of
£3,015,000 which in addition to capital grants received of£1,310,000

enabled investmentin assets of £2,081,000.

. The College will maintain the current asset ratio in excess of 1 excluding the
effect of any impact of FRS102 changes; and

The current asset ratio for the year was achieved with a figure of 1.7
comparedto 1.8 in 2019/20

. Cash will be maintained to ensure sufficient cash balances to meetthe staff and
non-staff cost expenditure needsof the business.

Cash days in hand were always maintained above 40 days of expenditure
during the year and stood at 107 daysat the year end.

. All loan covenant requirements will be satisfied.

All bank covenants were met during the year.

. Staff costs as a percentage of income to remain within budget with a longer-term
objective to bring the percentage down to 65%orlower.

Staff costs as a percentage of incomefinished the year at 69.5% which was
4.5% above the long-term objective of 65%. This figure does exclude
incomerelated to sub-contractors and their associated costs as well as
incomeandstaff costs recharged to the Suffolk Academies Trust. Staff

costs from the Suffolk Academies Trust have been included.

. ESFA assessmentof financial health to be a minimum of “Good”

The automatedfinancial health grade, which was generated from the ESFA

CFFR July return in July 2021, was “Outstanding”. This grade relied on a
forecast surplus of£785,000 whichis better than the final surplus of£559,000
before any non-cash movementin respect of the LGPS.

. Seek to achieve an adjusted surplus as a % of adjusted income of 3%(as per
formula of row 5f of Ratio Schedule 2b of the ESFA Financial Plan).

Although the financial plan has been replaced by the CFFR (and previously

the IFIMC) this measure has beenretained. The adjusted surplus was
£1,266,000 which represented 4.0% of adjusted income. This was achieved

despite a reduction of incomein year due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

PerformanceIndicators
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Key performance Measure/ Target Actualfor 2020/21
indicator

16-19 Student National rates suspended 89% achievement
achievement for 2020/21

16-19 Student - 94% had a positive
progression intended destination

Operating surplus / Budget 2020/21: 7.4% Actual 2020/21: 8.7%
EBITDA as % of income

Ofsted rating Self-Assessed as Good as at 2016
Outstanding July 2021 inspection     
 

FINANCIAL POSITION

Financial Results

The College has generated a retained deficit for the year before actuarial losses and
gains as reported in the SOCIof £1,967,000 (2019/20 £630,000deficit). Excluding the
impact of non-cash movements in respect of the LGPS_ of
£2,526,000 (2019/20 £1,660,000) the College’s adjusted surplus before actuarial
losses and gains was £559,000 (2019/20 £1,030,000).

As with the 2019/20 year, the pandemic has had a substantial impact on the income

streams and expenditure lines of the College and a second-yearrelaxation of the AEB
tolerance thresholds, albeit to only 90%, was helpful to the College’s financial well-
being. Apprenticeship and full cost course incomelines were subdued due to
consumer behaviour and the restrictions of government-imposed lockdowns.

Financial Health

The College’s financial health was graded as Outstanding for the
2019/20 year and predicted to remain as Outstanding for the 2020/21 year. Despite
the challenges of the pandemic, the grade for the 2020/21 outturn has remained at
Outstanding due to strong performances in apprenticeship activity which although
lower than expectations still performed well and the generation of extra income
streams combined with efficient spend supportingall incomelines.

The July forecast return sent to the ESFA in July 2021 incorporates the College’s
budget for 2021-22 which showsa targetof ‘good’ financial health for the year.

Treasury Policies and Objectives

The College has a treasury managementpolicy, which outlines how the Collegewill
manageits cash flows, its banking and money market and capital transactions,
togetherwith the effective control of risks associated with those activities. The College
invests its surplus cash balancesin the money market through Lloyds although returns
have remained very low for a considerable period now. The Finance Committee has



considered alternative investment areas but considers that the risks and the practical

difficulties of moving money around will undermine any marginal benefit. During the
year the College earned £10,000 of interest from invested surplus cash.

Cash Flows

The cash flow from operating activities during the year was
£3,015,000 (2019/20 £3,313,000) although as with 2019/20, this cash inflow was

offset by other items, givinga net increase in cash for the year of
£3,001,000 (net increase in cash of £529,000 in 2019/20). £1,298,000 of this related
to a decrease in long term deposits and therefore the underlying cash movement
(including long term deposits) from 2019/20 wasa netincreasein cashfor the year of
£1,703,000.

Liquidity

Supported by the ESFA FE Capital Allocation grant received in the year (£1,094,000),
the College’s liquid assets have been used during the year to invest in a number
of small capital projects, which in addition to smaller condition improvement works
identified by a condition survey commissioned by the
College has included the commencement of the re-roofing of the Australia House
building at the Humanities Arts and Health campus.

The College does not have a formal reserves policy but seeks to build up adequate
reservesin order to ensure that the College remains financially stable from a cash
perspective whilst enabling ongoing investment in its estate. The College plans

to continue to fund short term capital aspirations arising from condition surveys but
also projects to support the College’s strategic priorities. At the year end the cash and
short term deposits stood at £9,424,000 and whilst this is a healthy level, the College
has loans to service and has pledged to match T Level funding offered by the DfE.
Overthe next three years the College will generate enough cashfor roofing works
required at the Built Environment campusandwill continue bidding for project funding.

CURRENT AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE

Student Numbers

In 2020/21 the College delivered courses that have earned £22,591 ,000 in the funding
bodies’ main allocations (2019/20 £20,513,000). The College enrolled 3,174 16-18
year olds and 1,680 19+ Classroom Based Learners and had over1,900 apprentices
in learning during the year. The College also enrolled over 540 Higher Education
students generating an income of £3,139,000 in its partnership with the University of
Suffolk and Direct funded students (2019/20 £3,430,000).

Student Achievements

The College has continued to grow and develop since the last Ofsted inspection in
May 2016, which confirmed the College’s self-assessment as “Good”. However, the



academic year 2020/21 continued to be a challenging year for the College, like the
rest of the country, being impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. Due to effective
curriculum delivery planning in the Autumnterm, interruption to students learning was
minimised whenthe country went into a further national lockdownin the Spring term.
Students and staff were well prepared for online remote learning and highly effective
wrap-around support ensured students were well supported with their well-being.
Whenthe College returned to in-person teaching in the secondhalf of the Spring term,
students and staff embraced the opportunity to continue with assessments as normal.

For the academic year 2020/21, the Collegeis again self-Assessing as “Outstanding”
for Overall Effectiveness, as students and staff have been able to demonstrate

outstanding delivery through the Quality of Education, Behaviours and Attitudes and
Personal Development. These areas demonstrate the commitment from both staff
and students to consistently achieve above and beyond the norm in exceptional times.
Students have been able to excel in competitions where they secured some
exceptional achievements including Edmunds Restaurant maintaining the AA College
Rosette Level two for exemplary standards and training. Level 3 Games Design
student Tom Kay has beenselected as one of the 10 best Young GamesDesigners
in the UK; he has been shortlisted as a BAFTA Young GamesDesigner finalist. The
Automotive department are launching a race team for the City Car Cup. Students will
run a team in the 2022 season, building the car from September 2021. Also, the
Culinary Arts department are delighted to be collaborating with Jamie Oliver and
Tesco’s on an exciting recipe project, that will see our students and team create
nutritious recipes that will be included in food boxesfor families in need.

Overall Qualification Achievement Rateswill not be formally recorded again this year,
dueto the cancellation of some exams,and the use of National Rates (NR) have been
suspended; however, due to the robust processes adopted in 2019/20 through the
Centre Assessed Grading process, we are confident that our exceptional
achievements for GCSE English and Maths are a true and accuratereflection of our
students’ ability, with GCSE English at 51% (grades 9 — 4) compared with 52% in
2019/20 and GCSE Maths 47% (grades 9 — 4) compared with 43% in 2019/20.

Students on vocational courses are not only achieving well but are achieving some of
the highest grades possible with 31% of Level 3 students gaining DDD — D*D*D* and
30% of Level 2 students attaining D — D*.

Despite the challenges of the pandemic, the overall Achievement Rate for Apprentices
has remained strong at 70%, which is 4% above the published NR. This includes
apprentices who are mainly undertaking the Standards where they are required to
complete End Point Assessment (EPA) to achieve their qualification. 100% of
apprentices passed the EPA; 96% passing ontheir first attempt.

Destinations

The College continues to track the intended destinations of its leavers with the vast
majority (97%) of apprentices progressing into paid employmentor education.

We have exceptional planned destinations for our Level 3 students with 99% having a
positive plan: 48% onto University, 7% onto an Apprenticeship/Traineeship, 7% to
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continuetheir college studies and 38% into employment. For our Entry Level, Level1,
and Level 2 students, 66% plan to progress onto the next programmelevel, 8% onto
an Apprenticeship/Traineeship and 22% into employment.
Curriculum Developments

T Levels in Digital, Science and Education will be delivered from 2021/22, with more

being planned from the academic year 2022/23. The College was success with T-
Level funding bids to support with its investment into these new qualifications. In

addition, the College has received £90K Early Adopter Fund to launch the three T-
Levels and a Specialist Equipment Allocation (SEA) fund of £182K to enable the
College to obtain the specialist equipment required for T-Leveldelivery.

Weare the only college within the National College for Nuclear, selected to run pilot
T Level work experience programme within the Nuclear sector. It will allow our
Engineering students to work directly with EDF for a week of work experience
activities.

The Science department are working with Karl Zeiss optics and British sugar on a T
Level work experience placement to increase their bio-ethanol production yields,
which will provide access to state-of-the-art equipment and offer our studentsfirst-
hand experience of high-quality placements.

The College has continued to work with The Career Colleges Trust, combining
vocationaltraining with real-world experiences. Students receiving high quality training
at WSC,while having many opportunities to work directly with employers, throughtheir
study andin the workplace. Thetraining is underpinned with a project-based approach
to learning where students are exposed to real world challenges, with input from
employers, building confidence and knowledge. This is being developed within Ports
and Logistics and Digital Construction.

Strong relationships have been established between the Built Environment and
employers such as Morgan Sindall who have provided Construction and the Built
Environment students with Personal Protective Equipment. GASWAY sponsored the
Level 2 Building Services Engineering course, Bedford’s provided £500 of sponsorship
and Britannia Architects will be providing site visits and talks to students.

Payment Performance

The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998 which cameinto force on
1 November 1998 requires Colleges, in the absence of agreementto the contrary, to
make payments to suppliers within 30 daysofeither the provision of goodsor services
or the date on which the invoice was received. The College terms are that payment
will be made by the end of the month following the month in which the invoice is
received. The College received no interest charges in respect of late paymentfor this
period.

Future Developments

The small but welcome increase to the base rateof 16-19 study
programmefunding took effect in the 2020/21 year and coupled with a strong rate of
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growth in student numbers and the banding of their courses over the preceding two
years, the College benefitted from ahealthy increase in 16-19 funding during
2020/21. The preceding years of static funding rates do present a challenge though
if the College is going to be able to successfully maintain and continue investment in
its two key assets:its staff and its estate.

In 2018, the College commissioned a condition survey for its building stock and this
identified a number of works that needed to be carried out over the ensuing five
year period in order to maintain the estate in good condition and these plans are
included in the College’s property strategy that feeds into the budget and three year
plan. The recent position by the DfE and ESFAto provide grant funding that is both
limited to successful applicants rather than available to all institutions and that requires
a degree of match funding has made for a very challenging capital
investment environment. Despite this though, the College has been very successful in
both winning capital grants and generating surplusesto invest in its’ estate and will
continue with its’ investment strategy.

A longstanding strategy of the College has been the successful engagement with
employers through a_ strong focus on their training provision, including
apprenticeships, upskilling existing staff and professional commercial training. This
has continued to be successful during 2020/21 and is evidencedbythe strong growth
in apprenticeship volumes and income and our extensive usage of Adult Education
Budgets. Despite the impact of COVID 19 the College has secured a strong pipeline
for further apprenticeships with both levy employers and SMEs. Engagement with
Levy paying employers has continued to be targeted and weanticipate further growth
in 2021/22 through tendering opportunities which have been very successful and
significant growth across Cambridgeshire.

The College has continued to work very closely with New Anglia Local Enterprise
Partnership (LEP) and Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Combined Authority as well
as other stakeholders to increase employer engagementand to provide the necessary

skills to support our stakeholders. We have built a reputation as the Provider of Choice
through our responsivenessand quality of service.

The College’s work with the Suffolk Academies Trust was highlighted as best practice
by Baroness Berridge when addressing the Sixth Form Colleges Association in the
summerof 2021.

2020/21 wasthe last year in which all three levels of degree course provision would
be delivered in partnership with the University of Suffolk as the College starts a new
relationship with the University of East Anglia and continues to grow its own direct
funded provision. The College has established a discrete University Studies identity
which will be predominantly delivered at the College’s University Studies Centre on
the STEM site. Investment has taken place in staffing, equipment, and premises to
improve the resourcing of University Studies courses and ambitious growth plans have
been made.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

During the 2020/21 year, the Vice Principal Finance and Resourcesheld responsibility
for Risk Management.

Therisk register is central to the College’s Risk Managementframework and aswell
as being considered and reviewed by the Audit and Risk Management Committee at
eachof its meetings, the register is reviewed by the College’s Senior Executive Team
regularly to ensurethatall risks identified are documentedonthe register, that control

’ measures remain relevant and operational, and risk severity and likelihood scores
remain appropriate. Each risk is also accompaniedbya list of actions required that
once implemented should lead to a reducedrisk score after mitigation measures have
been taken into account.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee reports on risk managementto the Board
whichis ultimately responsible for managementof risk at the College.

The strategic risks that may affect the College are maintained in the Corporate Risk

Register. In summary, the risks graded as high currently relatedto:

1. Loss of Access to Key Systems and Risk to Data Security

The College has monitored closely the experience of other FE & HE institutions
which have been subjected to “cyber-attack” causing significant disruption to
operations and supporting servicesin thoseinstitutions.

A numberof measures have been putin place orare to be actioned to reduce
that risk as follows:

Monitored occurrencesin other educational establishments to learn lessons
Reviewed insurance arrangements and obtained cyber-risks cover
Staff regularly reminded about “Phishing” emails

Simulated “phishing” attacks to test staff knowledge and target specific
training where required.
Newfirewall and network architecture
Key services held in “the Cloud”
Regulartesting of backup & restorefacilities
Use of secure online data storage
Multifactor authentication
Penetration testing
Passwordstrategye

e
e
e
e
e
e

2. Covid-19 Related College Closure

The College contended successfully with the disruption of the pandemic during
the end of 2019/20 and continued to operate successfully during 2020/21
considering the scale of challenge involved. Twoprinciple risks emerged in
relation to COVID-19, the first of which relates to disruption caused by the
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enforced closure of the College due either to a local lockdown or a lockdown
imposed upon the College as a consequenceoftriggering the requisite number
of positive Covid-19 cases. The principal effect of this will be to reduce income
through inability to continue to run all provision but equally the expected
potential reduction in volume of certain activities such as trading activities and
apprenticeships as an example.

To someextentthis risk is beyond the control of the College, but a numberof
measures have been put in place to reducethatrisk as follows:

Closely following Public Health England advice
Operating at controlled reduced capacity where appropriate

Regular Executive Team meetings dedicated to Covid-19 management

Establishmentofvirtual platforms for teaching and meetings
Student progress tracked and monitored
Student enrolments/applications completed online

Provision of signage, sanitiser & augmented cleaning regime
Installation of thermal imaging cameraat single points of entry
Government announcements monitored

A more detailed scenario planning exercise was commenced in September
2020finalising the establishment of building “bubbles” and the controlled and
central recording of staff and student movementsfor track and trace purposes.

With the severity of harm to individuals typically being reduced through the
extensive NHS vaccination programmeoperating through 2021, more face to
face teaching has been enabled, but with the added security that remote
learning can be implemented as required if circumstances change.

Covid Related Operational Disruption

The second COVID-19 related risk for the college relates to operational
disruption caused by a single group or team within the college suffering
significant Covid-related absence. This could be a group of senior managers or
indeed a curriculum or specific support team.

All of the mitigation measures refer to in the risk above apply as relevant
mitigation measures and althoughthis risk to some extentis still not entirely
within the collegesability to control,it is felt that this can be mitigated more than
the risk above. Additional mitigation measures for this specific risk are as
follows:

Segregation of staff teams to avoid team infection
Sponsoring of home working wherepracticable

Division of College into suitable “bubbles”
Distribution of staff teams within approved building bubbles

Student & staff attendance recorded & monitored across the College
Staff absence recorded and monitored
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In addition to the above the College’s staff succession planning wasrevisited in
September 2020 to ensure that the College can anticipate operational
challenges presented by staff absence so that the College can continue to
operate successfully.

The NHS Vaccination programme has typically reduced the severity of the
impact of COVID-19 on individuals and although this has reduced therisk to

the College this this second COVID-19 riskis still considered to be high.

Trade Union Facility Time

The Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulation 2017 require
the College to publish information on facility time arrangementsfor trade unionofficials
at the College.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

Numberof employees who were FTE employee number
union officials during the relevant

period
3 2.4

Percentage of time spent onfacility Numberof employees
time
1-50% 3

% of pay bill spent onfacility time £000

Total costof facility time 9

Total pay bill 24,769

% of total bill spent on facility time 0.04%
 

Equal Opportunities and Employmentof Disabled Persons

West Suffolk College is committed to ensuring equality of opportunity for all who learn
and workat the College. Wepositively respect and value differencesin age,disability,
gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race,
religion or belief, sex, and sexual orientation. We strive vigorously to remove

conditions which place people at a disadvantage, and wewill actively combatbigotry.
This policy is resourced, implemented, and monitored on a planned and annual basis.

The College’s Equal Opportunities Policy is published on the College’s website. The
College considersall applications from disabled persons, bearing in mind the aptitudes
of the individuals concerned. Where an existing employee becomesdisabled, every
effort is made to ensure that employment with the College continues. The College’s
policy is to provide training, career development and opportunities for promotion,
which, as far as possible, provide identical opportunities to those of non-disabled
employees.

Disability Statement

The College seeks to achieve the objectives set downin the Equality Act 2010:
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(a)

(d)

(e)

(f)

The College has a Learning Support function, which provides information,
advice and arranges support where necessary for students with disabilities.

Thereis a list of specialist equipment which the College can makeavailable for
use by students and staff and a rangeof assistive technologyis available.

The admissions policy for all students is described in College Procedures.
Appeals against a decision not to offer a place are dealt with under the
admissionspolicy.

The College continuesto invest in the appointmentof staff to support students
with learning difficulties and/or disabilities. There is a dedicated SENCo who
provides specialist advice and support as well as a large numberof Learning
Support Assistants who can provide a variety of support for learning. There is

a continuing programme of staff development to ensure that a high level of
appropriate support for students who have learning difficulties and/or
disabilities is provided.

Specialist programmes are described in College prospectuses, and

achievements and destinations are recorded and published.

Counselling and welfare services, disability statement, disciplinary and
complaints procedures, and other useful information are described in the
College Course Handbook,whichis issued to students at induction.

Disclosure of Information to Auditor

The members whoheld office at the date of approval of this report confirm that, so far

as they are each aware,there is no relevant audit information of which the College’s
auditor is unaware; and each memberhastakenall steps that he or she ought to have
taken to be awareof any relevant audit information and to establish that the College’s
auditors are aware of that information.

Approvedbyorder of the membersof the Corporation on 15 December 2021 and
signed onits behalf by:

PS,
E D’Souza Chair
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Statement of Corporate GovernanceandInternal Control

The following statement is provided to enable readers of the annual report and

accounts of the College to obtain a better understanding of its governance andlegal
structure. This statement covers the period from 1 August 2020 to 31 July 2021 and
up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

The College endeavours to conductits business:

i. in accordance with the seven principles identified by the Committee on
Standards in Public Life (selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability,
openness,honesty, and leadership); and

ii. in full accordance with the guidance to Colleges from the Association of
Colleges in the Code of Good Governance for English Colleges (known as“the
Code’).

The College is committed to exhibiting the best practice in all aspects of corporate
governance and in particular the Corporation has adopted and complied with the
Code. Wehave not adopted and therefore do not apply the UK Corporate Governance

Code 2016. However, we have reported on our Corporate Governance arrangements
by drawing uponbestpractice available, including those aspects of the UK Corporate
Governance Codeweconsiderto be relevant to the further education sector and best
practice.

In the opinion of the Corporation, the College complies with all the provisions of the
Code, and it has complied throughout the year ended 31 July 2021. The Corporation
recognises that, as a body entrusted with both public and private funds, it has a
particular duty to observe the highest standards of corporate governanceatall times.
In carrying out its responsibilities, it takes full account of the Code of Good Governance
for English Colleges issued by the Association of Colleges in March 2015, whichit
formally adopted at its meeting held on 17 July 2015.

The Corporation
The Members who served on the Corporation during the year and up to the date of
signature of this report are aslisted in the table on the next page.
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Member Date of Term of Date of Status of appointment Attendance Committees served
appointment office resignation as at 15.12.2021 2020/21 %

Mrs J Bloomfield 01.01.2000 Re- 1 year 31.07.2016 Co-opted member 100% Appointments and
appointed 2004, Became a Governance, Remuneration
2008, 2012, Co-opted

2016 then co- memberon
opted each year 01.08.2016
to 2020

Mr S Clarke 14.12.2012 3 years Independent member 100% Finance, Property
Reappointed Corporation
2019, 2021

Mrs S Daley 20.03.2015 3 years Independent member 100% Standards and Excellence,
Reappointed Appointments and
2018, 2020 Governance, Remuneration

Corporation
Mr E D'Souza 01.08.2018. 3 years Independent member 100% Finance, Property,

Reappointed Appointments and
01.08.2021 Governance, Remuneration

Appointed Chair Corporation
01.01.2019

Professor J Gazzard 15.12.2016 3 years Independent member 67% Audit and Risk Management,
Reappointed HE Educational Excellence,
2020 Corporation

Professor C Higgins 01.08.2015. 3 years Independent member 100% HE Educational Excellence,
Reappointed Finance, Property,
2018 and 2021 Corporation

Mr P Hickman 01.08.2020 3 years 31.08.2021 Staff member 67% Standards and Excellence

Mrs S Howard 01.08.2016 3 years Independent member 100% Appointments and
Reappointed Governance, Remuneration
2019 Corporation

Mr A Maltpress 14.12.2012 3 years 01.03.2021 Independent member 100% Audit and Risk Management
Reappointed Standards and Excellence,
2016,2019 Corporation

Mr H Nydam 15.12.2016 then 1 year Co-opted member 75% Audit and Risk Management
Co-optedin
2017, 2018,
2019, 2020

Mrs K Points 01.08.2016 3 years Independent member 100% Standards and Excellence
Reappointed Corporation
2019

Mr N Roberts 14.12.2012 co- 1 year Co-opted member 75% Audit and Risk Management
opted and then
Reappointed
each year.

Ms J Wakelam 01.08.2018 and 3 years Independent member 100%
reappointed

2021

Mrs D Wildridge 15.12.2011 3 years 01.03.2021 Independent member 100%
Reappointed
2015, 2018

Mr D Jugg 13.12.2019 As per 31.08.2021 Student member 0%
course

Ms E Lawrance 13.12.2019 As per 31.08.2021 Student member 67%
course

Dr N Savvas 13.12.2019 Ex- CEO 100%
officio

Teresa Elkin acted as Clerk to the Corporation (from June 2020to July 2021)
Suzannah Gales was appointed as Governance Professional and Clerk to the Corporation from July 2021
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Statement of Corporate Governanceand Internal Control continued

It is the Corporation’s responsibility to bring independent judgementto bear on issues
of strategy, performance, resources, and standardsof conduct.

The Corporation is provided with regular and timely information on the overall financial
performance of the College together with other information such as performance
against funding targets, proposed capital expenditure, quality matters and personnel-
related matters such as health and safety and environmental issues. The Corporation
meets each term.

The Corporation conducts its business through a number of committees. Each
committee has terms of reference, which have been approved by the Corporation.

These Committees are:

e Appointments and Governance Committee
Audit and Risk Management Committee
Finance Committee

HE Educational Excellence Committee

Property Committee
Remuneration Committee, and

Standards and Excellence Committee

Full minutes of all meetings, except those deemed to be confidential by the
Corporation, are available on the College’s website (https:/Avww.wsc.ac.uk/about-the-

college/governors/) or from the Governance Professionalat:

West Suffolk College
Out Risbygate
Bury St Edmunds
Suffolk
IP33 3RL

The Governance Professional maintains a register of financial and personal interests
of the Governors. The register is available for inspection at the above address.

All Governors are able to take independent professional advice in furtherance of their

duties at the College’s expense and have access to the Governance Professional,
who is responsible to the Board for ensuring that all applicable procedures and

regulations are complied with. The appointment, evaluation and removal of the
Governance Professional are matters for the Corporation as a whole.

Formal agendas, papers and reports are supplied to Governors in a timely manner,
prior to Board meetings. Briefings are provided on an ad hocbasis.

The Corporation has a strong and independent non-executive element and no
individual or group dominatesits decision-making process. The Corporation considers
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Statement of Corporate Governanceand Internal Control continued

that eachof its non-executive membersis independent of managementand free from
any businessorother relationship which could materially interfere with the exercise of
their independent judgement.

Thereis a cleardivision of responsibility in that the roles of the Chair of the Corporation
and Accounting Officer of the College are separate.

The usual internal control procedures and lines of reporting and approval have not
been interrupted due to COVID-19. All authorisation of transactions have been via
established electronic authorisation routes and these have not beeninterrupted by any
reduced staffing levels throughout the COVID-19 lockdown period.

All board meetings and communication have continued throughout the lockdown via
Teams where necessary and appropriate documentation has been retained
electronically. Secure systems have been enhancedthroughoutthis period to reduce
the threat of cyber-security, and the College has achieved Cyber Essentials which
evidences the level of security achieved through firewalls and use of systems to
monitor activity and potential threats.

The College was successful throughout the lockdownperiod in continued successful
relations with suppliers to provide ongoing services and achieving value for money.
There were no changesin supply continuity and payments to suppliers continued as
normal. There was one exception to this in order to ensure availability of catering
provision for reduced numbersofstaff and students throughout the College campuses.
Agreement was reached with the outsourced catering company to move them to a

cost-plus basis with an open bookpolicy for the period throughout the pandemic.

Appointments to the Corporation

Any new appointments to the Corporation are a matter for the consideration of the
Corporation as a whole. The Corporation has an Appointments and Governance
Committee comprising six members, which is responsible for the selection and
nomination of any new memberfor the Corporation’s consideration. The Corporation
is responsible for ensuring that appropriate induction and training is provided as
required.
Membersof the Corporation are appointed for a term ofoffice not exceeding three
years.

Corporation performance

The Corporation undertook a survey to evaluate the effectiveness of meetings in
2020/21 (in a pandemic year), to best plan for the new academic year. The Corporation
also completed a skills audit within the year.
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Statement of Corporate Governanceand Internal Control continued

Appointments and Governance and the Remuneration Committees

Throughout the year ending 31 July 2021, the College’s Appointments and
Governance and Remuneration Committees comprised six and five members
respectively. The Appointments and Governance Committee’s responsibilities are to
make recommendations to the Corporation on the appointments of Governors,
governance arrangements and the Remuneration Committee has the responsibility for
the remuneration of and benefits of the Accounting Officer and other designed senior
post holders.

Details of remuneration for the year ended 31 July 2021 are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Audit and Risk Management Committee comprises five members (four from
March 2021) which exclude the Accounting Officer and the Chair but includes two co-
opted members. The Committee operates in accordance with written terms of
reference approved by the Corporation.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee meets four times a year and provides a
forum for reporting by the College’s internal and financial statements auditors, who
have access to the Committee if necessary, for independent discussion, without the
presence of College management. The College management team attend by
invitation. The Committee also receives and considers reports from the main FE
funding bodies, as they affect the College’s business.

The College’s internal auditors review the systems of internal control, risk
management controls and governance processes in accordance with an agreed

annual plan and report their findings to management and the Audit and Risk
Management Committee.

Managementis responsible for the implementation of agreed audit recommendations,
and internal audit undertakes periodic follow-up reviews to ensure such
recommendations have been implemented.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee overseesthe internal audit, external audit
and risk managementprocessesand reports to the Corporation on the effectiveness

of the internal control system, including the College’s system for the managementof
risk. The Committee also advises the Corporation on the appointmentof internal and
financial statements auditors and their remuneration for audit and non-audit work as
well as reporting annually to the Corporation.

Internal control

Scopeof responsibility
The Corporation is ultimately responsible for the College’s system of internal control
andfor reviewing its effectiveness. However, such a system is designed to manage
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Statement of Corporate GovernanceandInternal Control continued

rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can provide
only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatementorloss.

The Corporation has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Principal, as
Accounting Officer, for maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports

the achievement of the College’s policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding
the public funds and assets for which they are personally responsible, in accordance

with the responsibilities assigned to the Accounting Officer in the Financial
Memorandum between the College and the funding bodies and in the case of the
Office for Students (OfS) compliance with the conditions of registration and any terms
and conditions of funding. The Accounting Officer is also responsible for reporting to

the Corporation any material weaknessesor breakdownsin internal control.

The purposeof the system of internal control

The system ofinternal control is designed to managerisk to a reasonable level rather
than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can

therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The
system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and

prioritise the risks to the achievement of College policies, aims and objectives, to
evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be
realised, and to manage themefficiently, effectively and economically. The system of

internal control has been in place in West Suffolk College for the year ended 31 July
2021 and upto the date of approval of the annual report and accounts.

Capacity to handle risk

The Corporation has reviewed the keyrisks to which the College is exposed together

with the operating, financial, reputational and compliance controls and arrangements
for compliance with legal and regulatory matters including those relating to the
regularity and propriety of the use of public funding that have been implemented to

mitigate those risks. The Corporation is of the view that there is a formal ongoing
processfor identifying, evaluating and managing the College’s significant risks that
has beenin place for the period ending 31 July 2021 and upto the date of approval
of the annual report and accounts. This processis regularly reviewed by the
Corporation.

The risk and control framework

The system of internal control is based on a framework of regular management
information, administrative procedures including the segregation of duties, and a
system of delegation and accountability. In particular, it includes:

e Comprehensive budgeting systems with an annual budget, which is reviewed
and agreed by the Corporation

e Regular reviews by the Corporation of periodic and annualfinancial reports

whichindicate financial performance against forecasts
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Statement of Corporate GovernanceandInternal Control continued

e Setting targets to measure financial and other performance

e Clearly defined capital investment control guidelines

e The adoption of formal project managementdisciplines, where appropriate

e Regularly reviewing Corporation membership.

The College has aninternal audit service, which operates in accordance with the
requirements of the Post-16 Audit Code of Practice. The work of the internal audit
service is informed by an analysis of the risks to which the College is exposed, and
annualinternal audit plans are based onthis analysis. The analysis of risks and the
internal audit plans are endorsed by the Corporation on the recommendation of the
Audit and Risk Management Committee. At minimum, annually, the Internal Auditor

provides the Corporation with a report on internal audit activity in the College. The
report includes the internal auditor's independent opinion on the adequacy and

effectiveness of the College’s system of risk management, controls, and governance
processes.

Review ofeffectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Principal has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness
of the system of internal control. The Principal's review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control is informed by:
Statement of Corporate GovernanceandInternal Control continued

e The workofthe internal auditors

e The work of the executive managers within the College who haveresponsibility
for the development and maintenanceofthe internal control framework

e Comments made by the College’s financial statements auditors and the
regularity reporting accountants in their managementletters and other reports.

The College Policy is for the Accounting Officer to be advised on the implications of
the result of the review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control by the
Audit and Risk Management Committee which oversees the work of the internal
auditor and other sources of assurance, and a plan to address weaknesses and
ensure continuous improvementof the systemis in place.

The Senior Management Team receives reports setting out key performanceandrisk

indicators and considers possible control issues brought to their attention by early
warning mechanisms, which are embeddedwithin the departments and reinforced by
risk awareness training. The Senior Management Team and the Audit and Risk
Management Committee also receive regular reports from internal audit and other

sources of assurance, which include recommendations for improvement.
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Statement of Corporate Governance andInternal Control continued

The Audit and Risk Management Committee’s role in this area is confined to a high-
level review of the arrangements for internal control. The Corporation’s agenda
includes a regular item for consideration of risk and control and receives reports
thereon from the Senior Management Team and the Audit and Risk Management
Committee. The emphasis is on obtaining the relevant degree of assurance and not
merely reporting by exception. At its December 2021 meeting, the Corporation carried
out the annual assessment for the year ended 31 July 2021 by considering
documentation from the senior management team and internal audit and taking
accountof events since 31 July 2021.

Based on the advice of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and the
Accounting Officer, the Corporation is of the opinion that the College has an adequate
and effective framework for governance, risk management and control, and has
fulfilled its statutory responsibility for "the effective and efficient use of resources, the
solvencyoftheinstitution and the body and the safeguardingoftheir assets.”

Going concern

The activities of the College, together with the factors likely to affect its future
development and performanceare set out in the Governing Body Report. Thefinancial

position of the College, its cash flow, liquidity, and borrowings are presented in the
Financial Statements and accompanying Notes.

The College currently has £4.8m of loans outstanding with bankers on terms as
presented in Note 18. The termsof the existing agreements are for the loans to be

repaid by 2028 for the loan of £1.7m and by 2030 for the two loanstotalling £3.1m.

The Colleges’ forecasts and financial projections indicate thatit will be able to operate
within this existing facility and covenants for the foreseeable future.

Accordingly, the College has a reasonable expectation that it has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, and for this reasonwill

continue to adopt the going concern basis in the preparation of its Financial
Statements.

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 15 December 2021 and
signed onits behalf by:

Signed Signed

{in
E D’Souza Dr N Savvas
Chair Accounting Officer
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Corporation’s statement on the College’s regularity, propriety and compliance
with Funding body terms and conditionsof funding.

The Corporation has consideredits responsibility to notify the Education and Skills
Funding Agency (ESFA) of materialirregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with
terms and conditions of funding, under the college’s grant funding agreements and
contracts with the ESFA.As part of our consideration we have had due regard to the
requirements of the grant funding agreements and contracts with the ESFA.

Weconfirm on behalf of the Corporation, that after due enquiry, and to the best of our
knowledge, we are able to identify any materialirregular or improper use of funds by

the College, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under
the College’s grant funding agreements and contracts with the ESFA or any other
public funder.

We confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-
compliance have been discoveredto date.If any instancesareidentified after the date
of this statement, these will be notified to the ESFA.

fh

E D’Souza Dr N Savvas
Chair Accounting Officer
15 December2021 15 December2021
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Statement of Responsibilities of the Members of the Corporation

The membersof the Corporation whoact as trusteesfor the charitable activities of the College
are required to present audited financial statements for each financial year.

The law applicable to charities in England and the terms and conditions of the Financial

Memorandum between the Education and Skills Funding Agency and the Corporation of the

College, requires the Corporation of the College to prepare financial statements and the

Report of the Corporation for each financial year in accordance with the Statement of

RecommendedPractice — Accounting for Further and Higher Education Institutions the annual

Accounts Direction issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, and in accordance

with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting

Standards) and which givea true andfair view of the state of affairs of the College and of the

College’s surplus/deficit of income over expenditure for that period.

In preparing the financial statements, the corporation is required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently

e make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

e state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explainedin the financial statements

° preparefinancial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to
assumethat the College will continue in operation.

The Corporation is responsible for adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show

and explain the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy, at any time,

the financial position of the College, and enableit to ensure that the financial statements are

prepared in accordancewith the Charities Act 2011 and other relevant accounting standards.

It is responsible for taking steps in order to safeguard the assets of the College and to prevent
and detect fraud and otherirregularities.

The maintenance andintegrity of the College website is the responsibility of the Corporation

of the College; the work carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these

matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have

occurred to the financial statements since they wereinitially presented on the website.

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements maydiffer from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Membersof the Corporation are responsible for ensuring that funds from the Education and

Skills Funding Agency are used only in accordance with the authorities that govern them as

defined by and in accordance with Further & Higher Education Act 1992, subsequent

legislation and related regulations and the Financial Memorandum with the Education and

Skills Funding Agency and any other conditions that may be prescribed from timeto time.

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 15 December 2021 and signed on
its behalf by:

E D’Souza

Chair
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE CORPORATION OF WEST SUFFOLK COLLEGE

Opinion

Wehaveaudited thefinancial statements of West Suffolk College (the “College”) for the year ended 31
July 2021 which comprise the statement of comprehensive income,the balance sheet, the statement

of changesin reserves, the statement of cash flows and notesto the financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in

their preparation is United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting

Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted

Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the College’s affairs as at 31 July 2021 and of the
College’s deficit of income over expenditure for the year then ended; and

e have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted

Accounting Practice.

Basis for opinion

Weconducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and

applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's

responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independentof the

college in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial

statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard and we havefulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtainedis sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusionsrelating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the governors’ use of the going concern

basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have notidentified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the college'sability

to continue as a going concernfora periodof at least twelve months from whenthefinancial statements
are authorisedfor issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the governors with respect to going concern are described

in the relevant sections of this report.

Otherinformation

The otherinformation comprises the information included in the Report and Financial Statements other
than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The governors are responsible for the

other information contained within the Report and Financial Statements. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other

information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the

course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material

inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whetherthis gives

rise to a material misstatementin the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have
performed, we concludethat there is a material misstatementof this other information, we are required

to reportthat fact.
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Wehavenothing to reportin this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Office for Students’ Accounts Direction

In our opinion,in all material respects:

e funds from whatever source administered by the college for specific purposes have been
properly applied to those purposes and managedin accordancewith relevantlegislation;

e funds provided by the Office for Students, UK Research and Innovation (including Research
England), the Education and Skills Funding Agency and Department for Education have been
applied in accordancewith the relevant terms and conditions; and

e the requirements of the Office for Students’ accounts direction for the relevant year’s financial
statements have been met.

Matters on which weare required to report by exception

Wehavenothingto report in respectof the following matters where the Post-16 Audit Code of
Practice 2020 to 2021 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency requires us to report to you
if, in our opinion:

e adequate accounting records have not been kept;

e the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

e we havenot received all the information and explanations required for our audit.

Wehavenothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Office for Students’ accounts

direction requires us to report to youif:

e the College’s grant and fee income, as disclosed in the note 4a to the accounts, has been
materially misstated.

e The College’s expenditure on access and participation activities for the financial year has been

materially misstated.

Responsibilities of the Corporation of West Suffolk College

As explained morefully in the Statement Responsibilities of the Members of the Corporation set out on

page 26, the Corporation is responsible for the preparation of financial statements and for being

satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Corporation determine

is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whetherdueto fraud orerror.

In preparing the financial statements, the Corporation is responsible for assessing the College’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using

the going concernbasis of accounting unless the Corporation either intend to liquidate the College or
to cease operations, or have norealistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Ourobjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whetherthe financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that

includes our opinion. Reasonable assuranceis a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordancewith ISAs (UK)will always detect a material misstatement whenit exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expectedto influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.
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The extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. The objectives of our audit are
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding compliance with laws and regulations that have
a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,to
perform audit procedures to help identify instances of non-compliance with other laws and regulations
that may have a material effect on the financial statements, and to respond appropriately to identified
or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations identified during the audit.

In relation to fraud, the objectives of our audit are to identify and assessthe risk of material misstatement
of the financial statements due to fraud, to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
assessedrisks of material misstatement due to fraud through designing and implementing appropriate

responsesand to respond appropriately to fraud or suspected fraud identified during the audit.

However, it is the primary responsibility of management, with the oversight of those charged with
governance, to ensure that the entity's operations are conducted in accordance with the provisions of

laws and regulations and for the prevention and detection offraud.

In identifying and assessing risks of material misstatementin respectofirregularities, including fraud,

the audit engagement team:

e obtained an understanding of the nature of the sector, including the legal and regulatory
frameworksthat the College operates in and howthe college are complying with the legal and
regulatory frameworks;

e inquired of management, and those charged with governance, about their ownidentification

and assessmentof the risks ofirregularities, including any knownactual, suspected or alleged
instancesof fraud;

e discussed matters about non-compliance with laws and regulations and how fraud might occur
including assessment of how and wherethe financial statements may be susceptible to fraud.

As a result of these procedures we consider the mostsignificant laws and regulations that have a direct

impact on the financial statements are FRS 102, Further and Higher Education SORP,the College

Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, Regulatory Advice 9:
Accounts Direction published by the Office for Students and tax compliance regulations. We performed

audit procedures to detect non-compliances which may have a material impact on the financial

statements whichincluded reviewing financial statement disclosures, remaining alert to new or unusual
transactions which may not be in accordance with the governing documents, reviewing any
correspondencefrom local tax authorities and inquiring of management whether the college is in
compliance with these law and regulations.

The mostsignificant laws and regulations that have an indirect impact on the financial statements are
those whicharein relation to the Education Inspection Framework under the Education and Inspections
Act 2006, Keeping Children Safe in Education under the Education Act 2002 and the UK General Data

Protection Regulation (UK GDPR)and the Data Protection Act 2018. We performed audit procedures

to inquire of management and those charged with governance whetherthe college is in compliance

with these law and regulations and inspected correspondencewithlicensing or regulatory authorities.

The audit engagement team identified the risk of managementoverride of controls as the area where
the financial statements were most susceptible to material misstatement due to fraud. Audit procedures

performed included but were notlimited to testing manualjournal entries and other adjustments and

evaluating the business rationale in relation to any significant, unusual transactions and transactions
entered into outside the normal course of business, challenging judgments and estimates.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the

Financial Reporting Council's website at http:/Avww.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditor's report.
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Useof our report

This report is made solely to the Corporation, as a body, in accordance with the Funding Agreement

published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency and our engagementletter dated 21 October
2021. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Corporation, as a body, those
matters we are engagedto state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Corporation, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

OSH ot Aucuk Uf

RSM UK AUDIT LLP
Chartered Accountants
Blenheim House

Newmarket Road

Bury St Edmunds

Suffolk

IP33 3SB

Date 23 Decambe/ 202!
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WEST SUFFOLK COLLEGE

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED31 JULY 2021

 

Income

Funding body grants

Tuition fees and education contracts

Other grants and contracts

Other income

Investment income

Total income

Expenditure

Staff costs

Other operating expenses

Depreciation and amortisation

Interest and other finance costs

Total expenditure

Deficit before other gains or losses

Gain on disposal of tangible fixed assets

Deficit for the year

Remeasurementof net defined benefit pension

liability

Total comprehensive incomefor the year

31

Notes

N
O
O
B
R
W

11, 12
10

23

2021

Total

£000

27,121

1,751

2,387

982

10

32,251

24,769

7,227

1,831
394

34,221

(1,970)

3

(1,967)

(1,222)

(3,189)

2020

Total

£000

24,970
1,890
2,008
1,286

45

30,199

22,099
6,655
1,712
366

30,832

(633)

(630)

(7,612)

(8,242)



 

WEST SUFFOLK COLLEGE

BALANCE SHEETASAT31 JULY 2021

 

Notes 2021 2020
£000 £000

Fixed assets

Tangible assets 11 34,065 33,887

Intangible assets 12 119 47
Investments 13 - -

34,184 33,934
Current assets

Stocks 40 36

Debtors 14 2,537 2,179

Investments 15 4,110 5,408

Cash at bank and in hand 5,314 2,313

12,001 9,936

Currentliabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 16 (7,125) (5,669)

Net current assets 4,876 4,267

Total assets less currentliabilities 39,060 38,201

Creditors: amountsfalling due after one year 17 (11,261) (11,011)

Provisions

Defined benefit obligations 23 (24,273) (20,525)
Otherprovisions 19 (152) (102)

TOTAL NET ASSETS 3,374 6,563

Reserves

Income and expenditure reserve 80 3,159

Revaluation reserve 3,294 3,404

TOTAL RESERVES 3,374 6,563

The financial statements on pages 31 to 62 were approved and authorised for issue by the

Corporation on 15 December 2021 and were signed onits behalf on that date by:

n-
E D’Souza Dr N Savvas

Chair Accounting Officer
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WEST SUFFOLK COLLEGE

STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN RESERVES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED31 JULY 2021

 

Balance at 1 August 2019

Surplus/ (Deficit) for the year

Other comprehensive income

Transfers between revaluation and income

and expenditure reserves

Total comprehensive incomefor the year

Balanceat 31 July 2020

Surplus/ (Deficit) for the year

Other comprehensive income

Transfers between revaluation and income

and expenditure reserves

Total comprehensive incomefor the year

Balance at 31 July 2021
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Income and Revaluation Total

expenditure reserve

reserve

£000 £000 £000

11,290 3,515 14,805

(630) - (630)

(7,612) - (7,612)

111 (111) -

(8,131) (111) (8,242)

3,159 3,404 6,563

(1,967) - (1,967)

(1,222) “ (1,222)

110 (110) -

(3,079) (110) (3,189)

80 3,294 3,374

 



 

WEST SUFFOLK COLLEGE

| STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS

|
FOR THE YEAR ENDED31 JULY 2021

 

| Notes Yearended Year ended

| 31 July 2021 34 July 2020
| £000 £000
| Operating activities

| Cash generated from operations 20 3,015 3,313

| Investing activities
Interest received i 10 45

Withdrawalof deposits 4,499 4,800

New deposits (3,201) (4,705)

Proceeds from sale offixed asset 3 3

Purchaseof tangible fixed assets (1,901) (2,264)

Purchaseofintangible fixed assets (100) (11)

Deferred capital grants received 1,310 -

620 2,132

Financingactivities

Interest paid 10 (91) (112)

Repayments of borrowings (543) (540)

634 (652

Increase in cash and cash equivalents in the 3,001 529
year

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 2,313 1,784

Cash andcash equivalents at the end of the 5,314 2,313
year
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WEST SUFFOLK COLLEGE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR
TO 31 JULY 2021

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Thefollowing accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items
which are considered materialin relation to the financial statements.

General information

West Suffolk College is a corporation established under the Further and Higher
Education Act 1992 as an English General College of Further Education. The address

of the College’s principal place of business is given on page 19.

The nature of the College’s operations are set out in the Governing Body Report.

Basis of accounting

Thesefinancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of
RecommendedPractice: Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2019 (the 2019
FE HE SORP), the College Accounts Direction for 2020 to 2021 and the Accounts
Direction issued by the Office for Students and in accordancewith Financial Reporting
Standard 102 - “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom
and Republic of Ireland” (FRS102) underthe historical cost convention. The College
is a public benefit entity and has therefore applied the relevant public benefit

requirements of FRS102.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwisestated.

The financial statements are presented in sterling which is the functional currency of
the College.

Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest whole
£1,000, except where otherwiseindicated.

Basis of consolidation

Thefinancial statements include the College only.

The College has three dormant subsidiary companies, Magna Carta Consultants
Limited (Company number 02820332), Suffolk Apprenticeships Limited (Company
number 07425615) and Eastern Colleges Group Limited (Company number
12156976). Thereis no activity for any of the subsidiaries and they have not therefore
been included as consolidated financial statements.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

On 24 July 2015, the College created Suffolk Academies Trust (a multi academytrust)
as a discrete legal entity.
Following the Trust’s adoption of new Articles of Association on 28 June 2021, the

College is now a ‘Member’ of the Trust and has the authority to appoint “up to three
persons” to the Members(pursuantto Article 12).

In 2020/21, the Corporation appointed Sarah Howard to act as its representative

Member. Following resignations in March 2021, the Trust now comprises of 4
Members and the Trustee Board now comprises of 14 Trustees, of which 6 Trustees
(including the CEO) are also Governors of West Suffolk College.

As such, the Trustee Board maintains majority independence from the College.
Though the College, as sponsor, maintains appropriate control of the Trust through
the Membersandtheir authority to appoint and remove Trustees.

In accordance with Financial Reporting Standard (Section 9) 102, the activities of the
student council have not been consolidated because the College does not control
thoseactivities. All financial statements are madeup to 31 July 2021.

Going concern

The activities of the College, together with the factors likely to affect its future
development and performanceare set out in the Strategic Report of the Governing
Body. Thefinancial position of the College,its cash flow,liquidity, and borrowings are
presented in the Financial Statements and accompanying Notes.

The challenges of the COVID-19 pandemic have impacted ontheresults for the year,
although the College still outperformed its budget plan for the year and has a
reasonable expectation of achieving budget in 2021/22.

The College currently has £4.8m of loans outstanding with bankers on various terms
(see note 18). The College’s forecasts andfinancial projections which coverthe period
from 1 August 2021 to 31 July 2024indicate thatit will be able to operate within these
existing facilities and covenants for the foreseeable future.

The members of the Corporation make this assessment in respect of a period of at
least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concludedthat the College has a reasonable expectation that it has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, and for this
reasonwill continue to adopt the going concern basis in the preparation of its annual
Financial Statements.

Recognition of income

Revenue grant funding

Government revenue grants are accounted for under the accrual model(as permitted

by FRS102) and are recognised wherea reliable estimate of the fair value of the asset
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

received or receivable can be made on a systematic basis over the periods in which

the related costs for which the grant compensatesare recognised.

Adult Education Budget (‘AEB’) grant funding income is measuredin line with best
estimatesfor the year in accordancewith the annual main funding guidance published

by the ESFA. Any under achievementof the AEBis usually adjusted for and reflected
in the level of recurrent grant recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

For the 2020/21 yearin light of COVID-19 the ESFA have announcedthat there will

be a tolerance of 90% for clawback of the AEB. Thefinal grant income is normally

determined with the conclusion of the year end reconciliation process with the funding

bodyfollowing the year end.

16-18 learner-responsive funding is not normally subject to reconciliation and is

therefore not subject to contract adjustments and is recognised whenreceivable.

Levy-funded and ESFA funding for co-investment model apprenticeships income is
measuredinline with best estimates of the provision deliveredin the year.

The recurrent grant from OFS represents the funding allocations attributable to the
current financial year and is credited direct to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

Where part of a governmentgrant is deferred, the deferred element is recognised as
deferred incomewithin creditors and allocated betweencreditors due within one year
and creditors due after more than one year as appropriate.

Grants from non-government sources, including grants relating to assets, are
recognised in income whenthe performance-related conditions have been met and
the grant will be received. Income received in advance of performance related
conditions being met is recognised asa liability.

Capital grant funding

Governmentcapital grants are capitalised, held as deferred income and recognisedin

incomeoverthe expected useful life of the asset, under the accrual model as permitted
by FRS 102. Other, non-governmental, capital grants are recognised in income when

the college is entitled to the funds subject to any performancerelated conditions being
met. Income received in advance of performance related conditions being met is

recognised as deferred income within creditors on the Balance Sheet and released to

income as conditions are met.

Other income

Income from the supply of services is recognised at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents the value of services to the extent there is a

right to consideration.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Fee income

Income from tuition fees, including employer funding for co-investment funded
apprenticeshipsis recognised overthe period for whichit is received and stated gross
of any expenditure which is not a discount.

Investment income

All income from short-term deposits is credited to the income and expenditure account
in the period in whichit is earned on a receivable basis:

Agency arrangements

The College acts as an agentin distributing 16-18 Bursary support funds from the
funding body. Payments received from the funding body and subsequent
disbursements to students are excluded from the income and expenditure accountof
the College where the College does not have control of the economic benefit related
to the transaction and are shown separately in note 25, except for 5% of the grant
received whichis available to the College to cover administration costs relating to the
grant, and also lunch and stationery vouchers provided to students for use within the
College.

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employeesof the College areprincipally provided by Teachers’
Pensions Scheme (TPS) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), which
are multi-employer defined benefit plans and are externally funded and contracted out
of the State Second Pension.

Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS)

The TPS is an unfunded scheme. Contributions to the TPS are calculated so as to
spread the costof pensions over employees’ working lives with the College in such a
way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future
pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by qualified actuaries on the
basis of valuations using a projected unit method.

The TPSis a multi-employer schemebutsufficient information is not available to use
defined benefit accounting and thereforeit is accounted for as a defined contribution
scheme,with the amount charged to the statement of comprehensive income being
the contributions payable in the year. Differences between contributions payablein the
year and contributions actually paid are shownaseither accruals or prepayments.

Suffolk Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)

The LGPSis a funded scheme,and the assets of the scheme are held separately.
Pension schemes are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an
actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. The actuarial valuations are
obtainedatleast triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts
chargedto operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

introductions, benefit changes, settlements, and curtailments. They are included as
part of staff costs.

The net interest cost on the net defined benefit liabilityfasset is charged to
comprehensive incomeandincluded within finance costs.

Re-measurement comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on scheme
assets (excluding amountsinclude in net interest on the net defined benefit liability)
are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income.

Short term Employment benefits

Short term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences(holiday
pay) are recognised as an expensein the year in which the employees render service
to the Group. The cost of any unused holiday entitlement the Group expects to payin
future periods is recognised in the period the employees’ services are rendered.

Tangible fixed assets

The College’s policyis to carry all assets at historical cost, except for inherited assets
which are included in the balance sheet at a valuation carried out in May 1996. The
associated credit is included in the revaluation reserve. The difference between
depreciation charged onthehistoric cost of assets and the actual charge for the year
calculated on the revalued amountis released to the income and expenditure account

reserve on an annual basis.

(a) Land and buildings

Land and buildings are stated at depreciated replacement cost established by
independent valuation in May 1996. Land and buildings acquired since May
1996 are includedin the balance sheetat cost. Freehold land is not depreciated
as it is considered to have aninfinite useful life. Freehold buildings are
depreciated overtheir expected useful economiclife to the College of 50 years.
All other buildings are depreciated over their useful economiclives as follows:

Buildings 50 years on a straight-line basis
Freehold improvements 8 years on a straight-line basis
Freehold improvements with
an extended useful life 15 years on straight-line basis
Leasehold improvements 8 years on a straight-line basis

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over eight years on a straight-line
basis unless the lease is due to expire before the depreciation has been fully
charged to the income and expenditure account. In such circumstances,the
depreciation is charged over the duration of the lease at a higherrate in order

to coincide with thelife of the lease.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

(b)

(c)

(d)

Finance costs, which are directly attributable to the construction of buildings,
are not capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.

A review for impairment of the fixed asset is carried out if events or changesin
circumstancesindicate that the carrying amountof the fixed asset may not be
recoverable

Subsequent expenditure on existing fixed assets

Wheresignificant expenditure is incurred on tangible fixed assetsit is charged
to the income and expenditure accountin the period it is incurred, unlessit
meets one of the following criteria, in which case it is capitalised and
depreciated on the relevant basis:

Assetcapacity increases

Substantial improvement has occurred in the quality of output or
reduction in operating costs

e Significant extension of the asset'slife beyond that conferred by repairs
and maintenance.

Equipment

Equipmentcosting less than £1,000is written off to the income and

expenditure accountin the period of acquisition. All other equipmentis
capitalised at cost.

Equipment inherited from the Local Education Authority is included in the
balance sheet at valuation but is now fully depreciated.

All equipmentis depreciated overits useful economiclife as follows:

Plant and machinery 8 years on a straight-line basis
Plant and machinery with
an extended useful life 20 years on straight-line basis
Office equipment 4 years on a straight-line basis
Computer equipment 4 years on a straight-line basis

Motorvehicles 4 years on a straight-line basis

Buildings under Construction

Buildings in the course of construction are accounted for at cost less any
identified impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and otherdirectly
attributable costs that are necessary to bring the building to operating condition.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Intangible fixed assets

Intangible assets are capitalised at cost and are amortised overtheir useful economic
life. Purchased computer software is amortised over 4 years.

A review for impairment of the fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the fixed asset may not be
recoverable.

Fixed asset investments

The College has a fixed asset investment in the ownership of Magna Carta
Consultants Limited, Suffolk Apprenticeships Limited and Eastern Colleges Group
Limited which are all currently dormant.

Fixed asset investmentsareinitially measured at cost and subsequently measured at
cost less impairment.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as expenditure in the period in which they are
incurred.

Leased assets

Costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease
term to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Cashand cash equivalents

Cash includes cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand. Deposits are
repayable on demandif they are in practice available within 24 hours without penalty.
Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. An investment
qualifies as a cash equivalent whenit has maturity of 3 months or less from the date
of acquisition.

Financialliabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity are classified according to the substanceofthe financial

instrument’s contractual obligations, rather than the financial instrument's legalform.

All loans, investments and short-term deposits held by the College are classified as
basic financial instruments in accordance with FRS 102. These instrumentsareinitially
recorded at the transaction price less any transaction costs (historical cost). FRS 102
requires that basic financial instruments are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, however the College has calculated that the difference betweenthe historical
cost and amortised cost basis is not material and so thesefinancial instruments are
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

stated on the balance sheetat historical cost. Loans and investments that are payable
or receivable within one yearare not discounted.

Taxation

The College is considered to passthe tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 Finance
Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK
corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the college is potentially exempt from taxation
in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by sections
478-488 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable
Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to
charitable purposes.

The College is partially exempt in respect of Value Added Tax, so that it can only
recover around 1.4% of the VAT charged onits inputs. Irrecoverable VAT oninputs
is included in the costs of such inputs and addedto the cost of tangible fixed assets
as appropriate, where the inputs themselvesare tangible fixed assets by nature.

Provisions and contingentliabilities

Provisions are recognised when

. the College has a presentlegal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event

. it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle the
obligation, and

‘ a reliable estimate can be made of the amountofthe obligation.

Wherethe effect of the time value of money is material, the amount expected to be
requiredto settle the obligation is recognised at present value using a pre-tax discount

rate. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance cost in the statement
of comprehensive incomein the periodit arises.

A contingentliability arises from a past event that gives the College a possible
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the College. Contingent
liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but
eitherit is not probable that an outflow of resourceswill be required, or the amount of
the obligation cannot be measuredreliably.

Contingentliabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet but are disclosed in the
notesto the financial statements.

Stock

Stock is valued at the lower of their cost and net realisable value. Where necessary,
provision is madefor obsolete, slow-moving, and defective stocks.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation

uncertainty

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and otherfactors, including expectations of future events that are believed

to be reasonable underthe circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

e Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated over their useful lives taking into account
residual values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual

values are assessed annually and may vary depending on a numberof factors. In
re-assessing assetlives, factors such as technological innovation, maintenance

programmes, economicutilisation and physical condition of the assets are taken
into account. Residual value assessments consider issues such as future market

conditions and the remaininglife of the asset.

e Local Government Pension Scheme

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit

liability depends on a numberoffactors that are determined on an actuarial basis
using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost
(income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these
assumptions, which are disclosedin note 23,will impact the carrying amount ofthe
pension liability. Furthermore,a roll forward approach which projects results from
the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the
actuary in valuing the pensionsliability at 31 July 2021. Any differences between
the figures derived from the roll forward approach and full actuarial valuation
would impact on the carrying amountof the pension liability.

e Property provision

The College has madeprovision for works to be carried out to the Barrackwall
to keepit in a safe and goodstate of repair. Historically this has been estimated
at £25k per year, but in 2020/21 the provision was increased by £107k to make
full provision to coverfor costs as per recent estimates. This will be kept under

review as a phased programmeof planned maintenanceis implemented.

The College has also madeprovision for any dilapidation works to be completed
at the termination of any leased property agreement. This is based onhistoric
dilapidation costs and adjusted for square meterage of the properties and the
length of the leases.
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2. ADJUSTED OPERATING SURPLUS

 

Total Total
Note 2021 2020

£000 £000
Total comprehensive incomefor the year (3,189) (8,242)

Add back: remeasurementof net defined benefit pension 23 1,222 7,612
liability
Add back: Non-cash impactof current service pension cost 23 2,223 1,406
Add back: Netinterest on defined pensionliability 23 303 254

Adjusted operating surplus 559 1,030

3. FUNDING BODY GRANTS

Total Total
2021 2020
£000 £000

Recurrent grants

Education and Skills Funding Agency - adult 1,933 2,050
Education and Skills Funding Agency — 16-18 15,994 13,884
Education and Skills Funding Agency - apprenticeships 4,664 4,579
Higher Education Funding Council 3,139 3,430

Specific grants

Education and Skills Funding Agency 431 147
Releases of governmentdeferred capital grants 426 419
Teacher Pension Schemecontribution grant 534 461

27,121 24,970

The figures above include £93kof fundingrelating to the 2019/20financial year, which
wasnot confirmed by the ESFA (£6k) / UoS (£80k) / Devolved AEB(£7k) until after 31
July 2020. Therefore,this incomeis included in the 2020/21 financial year.

West Suffolk College acts as a lead partnerfor certain training funding, some of which
is passed on tothird parties. The figure above for recurrent grants shows net income
earned by the College in its capacity both as a provider and asthe lead partner.All
other incomeclaimed from the ESFA and payableto third party partners has been
excluded from these accounts. Total income claimed in the year underthis type of
arrangementand the related payments to partners wasasfollows:

Income from Funding Bodies

Payments to non-College partners

Net income
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Total

2021

£000

682

Total

2020
£000

1,304
(535) (1,085)

147 219



 

4. TUITION FEES

 

 

2021 2020
£000 £000

Tuition fees 1,022 1,252

Advancelearner loan income 129 638

1,751 1,890

4a. TOTAL GRANTANDFEE INCOME
2021 2020
£000 £000

Grant income from the OfS 71 31

Grant incomefrom HE franchised provision 3,068 3,399

Grant incomefrom other bodies 23,982 21,540

Total funding body grants 27,121 24,970

Fee incomefor taught awards 144 113

Fee incomefor non-qualifying courses 1,607 1,777

Total tuition fees and education grants 1,751 1,890

Total grant and fee income 28,872 26,860

5. OTHER GRANT INCOME 2021 2020
£000 £000

European Funds 766 355

Other grants and contracts 689 719

Local Authority Additional Learning Needs 932 934

2,387 2,008

West Suffolk College acts as a lead partner for additional learning needs funding,

some of which is passed onto third parties. The figure above for Local Government

Additional Learning Needs showsnet income earnedbythe Collegein its capacity as
both a provider and the lead partner. Total income claimed in the year underthis type
of arrangementand the related payments to partners wasasfollows:

Income from local government

Payments to non-College partners

Net income
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2021 2020
£000 £000

268 683
(227) (580)

41 103



 

6. OTHER INCOME

 

 

2021 2020
£000 £000

Catering 55 212
Miscellaneous 557 467
Resale materials 6 20
Car park 8 38
Lettings 356 549

982 1,286

7. INVESTMENT INCOME

2021 2020
£000 £000

Interest from bank deposits 10 45

10 45

8. STAFF COSTS

2021 2020
Number Number

The average numberof persons (including key management

personnel) employed by the College during the year, expressed
as headcounts, was:

Teaching 308 256
Teaching and other support 193 204
Administration and central services 165 189

666 649

2021 2020
Number Number

The average number of persons (including key management

personnel) employed by the College during the year, expressed
as full-time equivalents, was:

Teaching 227 213
Teaching and other support 148 156

Administration and central services 171 160

546 529
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8. STAFF COSTS continued

Staff costs for the above persons: 2021

£000

Teaching 11,098

Teaching and other support 4,685

Administration and central services 6,690

Non-cash elementof current service cost 2,223

Restructuring costs — non contractual -

Restructuring costs — contractual -

Miscellaneous
Apprentice Levy costs 70

24,769

2021
£000

Wagesandsalaries 17,050

Social Security costs 1,541

Pension costs 5,854

Payroll sub-total 24,445

Contracted out staffing services 254

Restructuring costs — non contractual -

Restructuring costs - contractual -

Apprentice Levy costs 70

24,769

Key management personnel

2020
£000

9,712
4,623
6,257
1,406

33

63

22,099

2020
£000

15,730
1,385
4,701

21,816
185
33

63

22,099

Key managementpersonnel are those having authority and responsibility for planning,

directing and controlling the activities of the College and are represented bythe Chief

Executive, the Principal of Sixth Form Provision, two Vice Principals, three Group

Directors, and the Executive Dean of Higher Education. (In 2019/20 this also included

the Clerk to the Corporation and College Secretary.)

The College does consider AoC Senior Postholders Remuneration data whichit uses

as a comparatorto inform remuneration decisionsin relation to senior postholders.

Emoluments of key managementpersonnel and Accounting Officer

2021

Number

The number of key managementpersonnelincluding the

Accounting Officer was: 8

47

2020
Number

9



 

8. STAFF COSTScontinued

The numberof senior post holders and other staff who received annual emoluments
excluding employer contributions to national insurance and pensions butincluding
benefits in kind in the following ranges was:

2021 2021 2020
Numberof Numberof Numberof Numberof

key otherstaff key otherstaff
management management

personnel personnel

£50,001 to £55,000p.a. 4 n/a 3

£55,001 to £60,000 p.a. 1 n/a 1

£60,001 to £65,000 p.a. 1

£80,001 to £85,000 p.a. 2 - 4

2£85,001 to £90,000 p.a.

 

£145,001 to £150,000p.a. 1 - 1
9o 1

 

There are salary sacrifice schemesin place to provide childcare vouchers and a cycle to work
schemewhich were usedby two of the key managementpersonnel.

Included in the Key managementpersonnel emoluments below is an amountof £11k relating
to staff who left part way through the year, in addition to the replacementstaff costs for 12
months.

Key management personnel emoluments are madeupasfollows: 2021

£000
Salaries 670
Benefits in kind 2
National Insurance contributions 82
Pension contributions 156

Total emoluments 910

2020
£000
693

2
79
148

922

The above emolumentsinclude amounts payable to the Accounting Officer (whois also the
highest paid officer) of:

2021
£000

Salaries 148
Pension contributions 35

183
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2020
£000
148
34

182



 

8. STAFF COSTScontinued

There were amounts due to Key managementpersonnelof £7k that were waivedin the year.

(2019/20 Nil)

There has been no compensationforlossof office paid to Key management personnelin the

year.

There has been nocostofliving increment awarded to anystaff within the year 2020/21.

The remuneration of the accounting officer for 2020-21 was discussed by the College’s

Remuneration Committee. The accounting officer was not involved in setting their

remuneration. The factors taken into account by the Committee in determining the accounting

officer’s remuneration for the year to 31 July 2021 included: the AoC national salary survey

Senior Managersin FE; national salaries by role; regional salaries by role; previous increases;

affordability; achievementofall objectives; comparison of otherinstitutes of a similar size and

levelofrole.

A similar approach was used to determine the remuneration of other key management

personnel.

The relationship between the Accounting Officer’s emoluments, expressed as a multiple ofall

other employees based onfull-time equivalents, is set out below for both basic salary andtotal

remuneration.

2021 2020
No No

Basic salary as a multiple of median basic salary of staff 5 5

Total remuneration as a multiple of median basicsalaryof staff 5 5

The calculation is based on the median basic salary of all staff as at 31 March 2020 and

excludes any agency workers.

Governors’ remuneration

The Accounting Officer and the staff memberonly receive remuneration in respectof services

they provide undertaking their roles of Principal and CEO andstaff members undercontracts

of employment and not in respect of their roles as Governors. The other members of the

Corporation did not receive any payments from the College other than reimbursementoftravel

and subsistence expensesincurredin the course of their duties.

During the year total expenses of £Nil (2020 £790) were paid to or on behalf of 0 (2020 3)

Governors in respect of travel and subsistence and other out of pocket expensesincurredin

the courseoftheir duties.
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9. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

 

2021 2020
£000 £000

Teaching costs 2,844 2,670
Non-teaching costs 2,347 2,186
Premises costs 2,036 1,799

7,227 6,655

Deficit is stated after charging/(crediting):

Fees payable to RSM UKLLPin respect of both audit and non-audit
fees:

Audit of College 43 29
Other assurance services 2 3
Other non-audit services 2 -

Internal audit 26 24
Hire of assets under operating leases — land andbuildings 119 166
Hire of assets under operating leases — other 9 89
Operating lease rentals received (351) (540)

Gain on disposal of non-currentfixed assets 3 3

10. INTEREST PAYABLE AND OTHERFINANCE COSTS
2021 2020
£000 £000

Interest on bank loans 91 112
Netinterest on defined pensionliability (Note 23) 303 254

Total 394 366
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11. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Cost or valuation

At 1 August 2020

Additions

Disposals

At 31 July 2021

Depreciation

At 1 August 2020

Charge for the year

Elimination in respect of disposals

At 31 July 2021

Net bookvalue at 31 July 2021

Net book value at 31 July 2020

Included within land and buildingsis freehold land of £4,912,715 (2020 £4,912,715)

whichis not depreciated.

All assets are carried at depreciated historical cost with the exception of inherited

assets which are carried at depreciated replacementcost. The inherited assets were

re-valued by an independentfirm of Chartered Surveyors in May 1996 and their

 

 

 

 

 

Land and
buildings Equipment Total

freehold
£000 £000 £000

47,894 6,642 54,536

1,162 819 1,981

- (16) (16)

49,056 7,445 56,501

16,660 3,989 20,649

1,142 661 1,803

- (16) (16)

17,802 4,634 22,436

31,254 2,811 34,065

31,234 2,653 33,887
 

current net book value is £3.6m (2019/20 £3.7m).

Suffolk County Council (who arethe legally accountable body for the New Anglia LEP)

hold a legal charge over the ownership of the STEM site and buildings which are

ownedby WestSuffolk College. This charge would becomepayableif the College was

found to bein breachof any terms of the grant agreement. The Corporation considers

that these circumstancesare unlikely to arise.
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12. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

 

Software Total

£000 £000
Cost or valuation

At 1 August 2020 89 89

Additions 100 100

At 31 July 2021 _ 189 189

Amortisation

At 1 August 2020 42 42

Chargefor the year 28 28

At 31 July 2021 70 70

Net bookvalue at 31 July 2021 119 119

Net book value at 31 July 2020 47 47

13. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

2021 2020
£000 £000

Investments at cost a -

The Corporations owns 100% of the issued ordinary share capital of Magna Carta
Consultants Limited which is registered in England and Wales, at a cost of £2. The
principal activity of Magna Carta Consultants Limited was the provision of education
andtraining althoughit is not currently actively trading.

The Corporation owns 100% of the issued ordinary share capital of Suffolk
Apprenticeships Limited which is registered in England and Wales,at a cost of £2. The
principal activity of Suffolk Apprenticeships Limited was the provision of temporary and
fixed term staff to third parties. Suffolk Apprenticeships Limited is also not currently
actively trading.

The Corporation owns 100% of the issued ordinary share capital of Eastern Colleges
Group Limited whichis registered in England and Wales,at a costof £2. Theprincipal
activity of Eastern Colleges Group Limited wasto collaborate with third parties in the
delivery of high-quality educational support services. Eastern Colleges Group Limited
is not currently actively trading.
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14. DEBTORS

 

 

2021 2020
£000 £000

Amountsfalling due within one year

Trade debtors 750 284

Other debtors 4 7

Prepayments and accrued income 1,272 1,199

Amounts owed by the ESFA 511 663

Amounts owed by UoS - 26

___ 2,537 2,179 |

15. CURRENT ASSET INVESTMENTS
2021 2020
£000 £000

Amountsfalling due within one year

Short term deposits 4,110 5,408

4,110 5,408

Deposits are held with banks operating in the London market andlicensed by the Financial

ConductAuthority and are more than three months from acquisition. The interest rates for

these deposits are fixed for the duration of the deposit at time of placement.

 

16. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Bankloans (note 18)

Trade payables

Sundry creditors
Other taxation and social security

Accruals and deferred income
Amounts owed to — the ESFA
Amounts owedto — University of Suffolk

Deferred income — governmentcapital grants

53

2021
£000

548
1,504
421
486

2,230
1,383

58
495

7,125

2020
£000

543
1,205
407
409

2,135
561

409

5,669



 

17. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

 

2021 2020
£000 £000

Bankloans (note 18) 4,219 4,767
Deferred income — governmentcapital grants 7,042 6,244

11,261 11,011

18. MATURITY OF DEBT

Bank Loans

2021 2020
£000 £000

Bankloans repayable within 1 year 548 543
Bankloans repayable between 1 and 2 years 554 548
Bankloans repayable between 2 and 5 years 1,697 1,679
Bankloans repayable in more than 5 years 1,968 2,540

4,767 5,310

The College has three loans outstanding:
A loan of £3.5m of which £1.687m remains outstanding; this loan attracts interest of
Libor plus 1.5% and is repayable in equal instalments to end in 2028.

A loan of £2.5m of which £1.393m remains outstanding;this loan attracts interest at a
fixed rate of 1.422% and is repayable in equal instalments to end in 2030.

A loan of £3.5m of which £1.688m remains outstanding;this loan attracts interest at a
fixed rate of 2.345% until 2022 and is repayable nolater than 30 December 2030.

 

19. PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

 

Dilapidations Barrack Total

on leased Wall
properties

£000 £000 £000

At 1 August 2020 65 37 102
Transfer from income and expenditure account (26) 107 81
Expendedin the period (22) (9) (31)

Provisionsfor Liabilities and Charges at 31 17 135 152
July 2021
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19. PROVISIONS FORLIABILITIES AND CHARGEScontinued

Provision was madefor works to the grade listed barrack wall that surrounds the

copse at the mainsite. As a listed structure, the College has an obligation to keepit in

a safe and good state of repair. Work planned for 2020/21 has been delayed due to

COVID-19 and a shortageof the specialist bricks required.

Provision was also madefor dilapidations on leased properties at IP City Ipswich,

Sudbury, and a new leased property in Fore Street Ipswich. The IP City Ipswich

provision was based on a schedule ofdilapidations from the landlord provided when

the lease terminated in June 2020. Actual costs of dilapidations were able to be

reduced, thus releasing funds back into the income and expenditure account. The

Sudbury and Fore Street Ipswich dilapidations provision is based on the revised IP

City Ipswich costs and adjusted for m2 and length oflease.

 

20. NOTES TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT

A) Reconciliation of surplus after tax to net cash generated from/ (used in)

operations
2021
£000

(Deficit) for the year (1,967)

Adjustmentfor:

Depreciation and amortisation 1,831

Investment income (10)

Interest payable 394

Gain onsale offixed assets (3)

Increasein provisions 50

Pensionscosts less contributions payable 2,223

Operating cash flow before movements in working capital 2,518

Increase in stocks (4)

(Increase) / decreasein debtors (358)

Increase / (decrease) in creditors | 859

Cash generated from operations 3,015

B) Analysis of changesin net funds

2020
£000
(630)

1,712
(45)
366
(3)
72

1,406
2,878

(12)
932

(485)

3,313

At1 Aug Cashflow At31 July

 

 

2020 2021
£000 £000 £000

Cash in hand, and at bank 2,313 3,001 5,314

2,313 3,001 5,314

Bankloans (5,310) 543 (4,767)

Current asset investments 5,408 (1,298) 4,110

Net funds 2,411 2,246 4,657
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21. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
|

 

 
 

2021 2020
£000 £000

Contracts for future capital expenditure not provided 836 123

22. COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES

The total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows:

2021 2020
Payments due: £000 £000

Land and Buildings
Less than one year 102 108
Betweenoneandfive years 267 229
After five years 112 226

481 563
Other
Less than one year 38 69
Between oneandfive years 47 76
Afterfive years - 1

85 146

At 31 July the College had contracted with tenants under
non-cancellable operating leases, for the following future
minimum lease payments:

2021 2020
Receipts due: £000 £000

Land and Buildings

Less than one year 80 121
Between one andfive years 320 320
After five years a 1,120 1,200 __

1,520 1,641

 

23. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The College’s employees belongto twoprincipal post-employment benefit plans: The
Teachers’ Pension Scheme England and Wales (TPS)for academic andrelated staff:
and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)for non-teaching staff, which is
managed by Suffolk County Council. Both are multi-employer defined benefit plans.
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23. RETIREMENT BENEFITScontinued
2021 2020

Total pension costfor the year £000 £000

LGPS:Contributions paid 1,961 1,781

LGPS: FRS102 (28) charge 2,223 1,406

Charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Income 4,184 3,187

Teachers’ Pension Scheme:contributions paid 1,670 1,514

Total Pension Costfor Year within staff costs 5,854 4,704

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent

qualified actuaries. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was 31 March 2016 and

of the LGPS 31 March 2019.

An amount of £415,712 (2020 £404,268) was payable for pensioncontributions at 31

July and has beenincluded within creditors.

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit

scheme, governed by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. The TPSis

an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a ‘pay as you go’ basis — these

contributions, along with those made by employers, are credited to the Exchequer.

The TPS is a multi-employer pension plan and thereis insufficient information to

accountfor the schemeon asa defined benefit plan, soit is accounted for as a defined

contribution plan.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

Not less than every four years the Government Actuary (“GA”), using normalactuarial

principles, conducts a formalactuarial review of the TPS. The aim of the review is to

specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent

on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other

factors. The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as at 31 March 2016 and in

accordance with The Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap)

Directions 2014 except it has been prepared following the Government's decision to

pause the operation of the cost control mechanismsat the time whenlegal challenges

werestill pending.

The valuation report was publishedin April 2019. The key results of the valuation and

subsequent consultation are:
- Total schemeliabilities for service (pensions currently payable and the estimated

costof future benefits) of £218 billion

- Value of notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the proceeds

from the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196billion
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23. RETIREMENT BENEFITS continued

- Notional past service deficit of £22 billion
- Discount rate is 2.4% in excess of CPI

As a result of the valuation, new employercontribution rates were set at 23.68% of
pensionable pay from September 2020 onwards (compared to 16.48% during
2019/20). DfE agreed to pay a Teachers Pensions employer contribution grant to
cover the additional costs during the 2020-21 academic year, and currently through to
March 2022. The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.

The pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £1,670,000 (2020:
£1,514,000).

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPSis a funded defined-benefit plan, with the assets held in separate funds
administered by Suffolk County Council. The total contributions made for the year
ended 31 July 2021 were £2,473,000, of which employer's contributions totalled
£1,961,000 and employees’ contributionstotalled £512,000. The agreed contribution
rates for future years are 17.3% for employers and range from 5.5% to 7.5% for
employees, depending onsalary.

Principal Actuarial Assumptions

The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31
March 2019 updated to 31 July 2021 by a qualified independentactuary.

At 31 July 2021 At31 July 2020

Rate of increasein salaries 3.5% 2.8%
Future pension increases 2.8% 2.1%
Discount rate 1.6% 1.4%
Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.8% 2.1%
Commutation of pensionsto lump sums(pre-April 2008 25% 25%
service)
Commutation of pensions to lump sums (post April 63% 63%
2008 service)

The averagelife expectancy for a pensionerretiring at 65 on the reporting dateis:

At 31 July 2021 At 31 July 2020
Retiring today

Males 22.1 21.9
Females 24.5 24.1
Retiring in 20 years

Males 23.2 22/
Females 26.4 25.6
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23. RETIREMENT BENEFITScontinued

The college’s share of the assets in the plan at the balance sheet date and the

expected rates of return were:
Fair value at Fair value at
31 July 2021 31 July 2020

£000 £000
Equities 35,276 25,979

Bonds 13,568 12,094
Property 4,342 4,031
Cash 1,085 2,687 _
Total fair value of plan assets 54,271 44,791

Actualreturn on plan assets (6,656) 2,768

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Incomein respectof

the plan are:
2021 2020
£000 £000

Amounts includedin staff costs
Current service costs 4,128 3,407

Past service costs (6) (264)

4,122 3,143

Amounts includedin interest costs
Netinterest costs 303 254

303 254

Amountrecognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Return on pension plan assets (7,293) 1,821

Changesin assumptions underlying the presentvalue of the plan 8,515 5,791

1,222 7,612

2021 2020

Movementin net defined benefit liability during year £000 £000

Net defined benefit liability in scheme 1 August (20,525) (11,253)

Movementin year:
Current service cost (4,128) (3,407)

Past service cost (6) 264

Employercontributions 1,911 1,737

Netinterest on the defined liability (303) (254)

Actuarial gain (1,222) (7,612)

Net defined benefitliability at 31 July (24,273) (20,525)
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23. RETIREMENT BENEFITScontinued

Assetand Liability Reconciliation
Changes in the present value of defined benefit 2021 2020
obligations £000 £000
Defined benefit obligations at start of period 65,316 55,558
Current service cost 4,128 3,407
Past service cost 6 (264)
Interest cost 940 1,201
Employeecontributions 506 475
Actuarial loss / (gain) 8,515 5,791
Benefits paid (864) (852)
Liabilities at 31 July 78,547 65,316

Changesinthefair value of plan assets 2021 2019

£000 £000
Fair value of plan assets at start of period 44,791 44,305
Interest on plan assets 637 947
Return on plan assets 7,293 (1,821)
Employercontributions 1,911 1,737
Employee contributions 506 475
Benefits paid (864) (852)

Assets at 31 July 54,274 44,791

These accounts include a past service cost in respect of the McCloud / Sergeant
judgment which ruled that the transitional protection for some members of public
service schemes implemented when they were reformed constituted age
discrimination. The calculation of adjustment to past service costs arising from the
outcomeof the Court of Appeal judgment is based on a numberof key assumptions
including:

¢ the form of remedy adopted

« how the remedywill be implemented

¢ which memberswill be affected by the remedy

e the earning assumptions

¢ the withdrawal assumption

 

24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Due to the nature of the college’s operations and the composition of the board of
governors being drawn from local public and private sector organisations, it is
inevitable that transactions will take place with organisations in which a memberof the
board of governors mayhaveaninterest. All transactions involving such organisations
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24, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONScontinued

are conducted at arm’s length and in accordance with the college’s financial

regulations and normal procurement procedures.

At 31 July 2021, Magna Carta Consultants Limited owed £122,958 (2020 £122,958)

to West Suffolk College. This balance has beenfully provided against in both 2021

and 2020. Magna Carta Consultants Limited is a wholly owned dormant subsidiary of

West Suffolk College.

At 31 July 2021, Suffolk Academies Trust (SAT) is deemed a related party because

West Suffolk College is the sponsorof the Academy Trust. There are various service

level agreements in place between the two entities all of which are conducted at an

arm’s length basis and these are set out below for 2020/21:

Provision to SAT by West Suffolk College of CEO and CFO £97k (2020 £71k), support

services £237k (2020 Nil); One Sixth Form Principal £17k (2020 Nil); Curriculum staff

£27k (2020 Nil); provision of support staff to Abbeygate Sixth Form College £12k (2020

£128k); rental of One premises £80k (2020 £80k); rental of The Gateway premises

£271k (2020 £460k).
Provision to West Suffolk College by SAT support services £63k (2020 £29k).

At 31 July 2021 there was a balance of £480k owed to West Suffolk College by SAT

(2020 Nil) and there was a balanceof Nil owed by West Suffolk College to SAT (2020

£8k).

The College also has a 100% wholly owned subsidiary company called Eastern

Colleges Group Limited which is dormant. This company has been created in

anticipation of further opportunities being made available to the College to work in

collaboration with third parties in the delivery of high-quality educational support

services.

 

25. AMOUNTS DISBURSED AS AGENT

Adult Discretionary Support Yearended Year ended

31 July 2021 31 July 2020
£000 £000

Funding body grants — bursary support including free 453 375

school meals
Funding body grants — vulnerable 52 42

Funding body grants — advancedlearner loan 107 88

Funding body grants — recycled funds from previous year 357 54

969 559

Disbursed to students (224) (246)

Disbursedto third party (65) (48)

Amountincluded as income in SOCI (46) (28)

Administration costs (27) (21)

Balance unspentat 31 July, included in creditors _ 607 216
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25. AMOUNTS DISBURSEDAS AGENTcontinued

Funding body grants are available solely for students.In the majority of circumstances,
the College acts only as a paying agent. In these circumstances, the grants and related
disbursements are therefore excluded from the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

 

26. ACCESS AND PARTICIPATION PLAN

2021 2020
£000 £000

Accessinvestment 2 2
Financial support provided to students 11 -
Support for disabled students 1 1
Investment in Success and Progress 3 1
Research and evaluation related to access and participation 3 -

20 4

2020/21 was the College’s second yearwith direct funded status and an associated
OfS-approved Access and Participation plan (A&P Plan). The objectives of the plan
were focussed on a commitment to spend 56% ofall higher fee incomein supporting
the objectives of the A&P Plan. Whentheplan wasfinalised prior to 2019/20this was
expected to equate to an investment of £25k which represented the 56% target of
higherfee income.

Actual courses and numbersofstudentsin the higher fee band weresignificantly lower
than plannedfor in the A&P Plan during 2020/21 and with higher fee incomefor the
yearonly totalling £32,690, the total investment above represented 61% of higherfee
income which is 5% higher than the target set of 56%. The total spend on Access and
Participation was £19,853.64 excluding allocation of central overheads.

Asthe volumeofdirect funded students in higher fee bands increases, the investment
figures will also increase
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON REGULARITY TO THE

CORPORATION OF WEST SUFFOLK COLLEGE AND THE SECRETARY OF STATE FOR

EDUCATION ACTING THROUGH EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

Conclusion
Wehave carried out an engagement, in accordance with the terms of our engagementletter dated 21

October 2021 andfurther to the requirements of the grant funding agreements and contracts with the

Education and Skills Funding Agency (the “ESFA”) or any other public funder, to obtain limited

assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by West Suffolk College

during the period 1 August 2020 to 31 July 2021 have been applied to the purposesidentified by

Parliamentandthe financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

In the course ofour work, nothing has cometo our attention which suggeststhatin all material respects

the expenditure disbursed and incomereceived during the period 1 August 2020 to 31 July 2021 have

not been applied to purposesintended by Parliament andthe financial transactions do not conform to

the authorities which govern them.

Basis for conclusion
The frameworkthat has beenapplied is set out in the Post-16 Audit Codeof Practice (the Code) issued

by the ESFAandin anyrelevant conditionsof funding concerning adult education notified by a relevant

funder.In line with this framework, our work has specifically not considered incomereceived from the

main funding grants generated through the Individualised Learner Record (ILR) data returns, for which

the ESFA hasother assurance arrangementsin place.

We are independent of West Suffolk College in accordance with the ethical requirements that are

applicable to this engagement and we havefulfilled our ethical requirements in accordance with these

requirements. We believe the assurance evidence we have obtained is sufficient to provide a basis for

our conclusion

Responsibilities of Corporation of West Suffolk College for regularity

The Corporation of West Suffolk College is responsible, under the grant funding agreements and

contracts with the ESFA andthe requirements of the Further & Higher Education Act 1992, subsequent

legislation and related regulations and guidance, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income

received are applied for the purposesintended by Parliament andthefinancial transactions conform to

the authorities which govern them. The Corporation of West Suffolk College is also responsible for

preparing the Governing Body's Statement of Regularity, Propriety and Compliance.

Reporting accountant’s responsibilities for reporting on regularity

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s

ethical guidance and areto obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement

letter and the requirements of the Code.

The objective of a limited assurance engagementis to perform such proceduresasto obtain information

and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative

conclusion on regularity. A limited assurance engagementis morelimited in scope than a reasonable

assurance engagement and the procedures performedvary in nature andtiming from, and are lessin

extent than for a reasonable assurance engagement; consequently a limited assurance engagement

does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become awareofall significant matters that

mightbe identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive

opinion.

Wereport to you whether anything has cometo ourattention in carrying out our work which suggests

that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and incomereceived during the period 1 August

2020 to 31 July 2021 have notbeen applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial

transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our work included identification and assessmentof the design and operational effectiveness of the

controls, policies and proceduresthat have been implemented to ensure compliancewith the framework

of authorities including the specific requirements of the grant funding agreements and contracts with

the ESFA andhighlevelfinancial control areas where weidentified a material irregularity is likely to
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arise. We undertookdetailed testing, on a sample basis, on the identified areas where a material
irregularityis likely to arise where such areas are in respectof controls, policies and procedures that
apply to classesoftransactions.

This work wasintegrated with our audit of the financial statements and evidence wasalso derived from
the conductof that audit to the extentit supports the regularity conclusion.

Useof our report
This report is made solely to the Corporation of West Suffolk College and the Secretary of State for
Education acting through the ESFAin accordancewith the terms of our engagementletter. Our work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the Corporation of West Suffolk College and the
Secretary of State for Education acting through the ESFA those matters we are required to state ina
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Corporation of West Suffolk College and the Secretary of State
for Education acting through the ESFAfor our work,forthis report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

ESM Ud Pict UP

RSM UK AUDIT LLP
Chartered Accountants
Blenheim House

Newmarket Road

Bury St Edmunds

Suffolk

IP33 3SB

Address

Date 23 Decambe/ 202!

64


	Financial Statement Cover for the Year Ended 2021
	Scanned signed Financial statements 31Jul21.pdf

